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Trustees Report

The trustees presant their annual report fogether with the financial statements and auditer's report of the charitable
company for the year ended 31 August 2017. The annual report serves the purposes of both a trustees’ report and
a directors' report under company law.

The Trust currently operates 3 primary and 5 secondary acadermies across our 3 hubs in the North West of
England. These academias have a combined pupil capacity of 5,885 pupils and had 4,714 pupils an roll as
recorded in census data at May 2017 1t should however be noted that the number of pupils curmently an roll at
Dean Trust Ardwick in relation ta eapacity reflects s status as a growing new free school with 2 aroups of pupils in
Year 7 and Year & only.

Structure, Governance and Management
Constitution

The Trust is & company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's mermorandum and
articles of association are the primary govemning documentis of the acaderny frust as incorporated on 12t April
2012. The trustees of The Dean Trust are also the directors of the charitabie company for the purposes of company
law. The charitable company is known as The Dean Truest, The Trust plans to review and update its Arficles of
Agzsociation over the forihcoming year to reflect curent govemance and constitutionat requirements

Details of the trustees who served during the year are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on
page 2.

Members' Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the chartable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased tnbe a
member.

Trusfees’ Indemnities

Profeszional Indemnity insurance is in placs to protact trustess, govemors, and officers from claims arizing fram
negligent acts, ermors or omissions ecourring on Trust business.

Methed of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

Trustees are assessed initially by invitation, dependent upon their experfise, experience and skills, priorto a
process of recruliment and appointment, Trustees may appoint up to 10 fnistees as referenced in the arficles of
association (46a) and are appainted for a term of 4 years.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

New trustees are interviewead and selected onto the Board to maintain a robust overview and governance
throughout the Trust. On all occasions, induction is provided in the workings of the Trust, including policdies and
procedures, togather with appropriate training opportunities. Reguiar skills audits are undertaken to ensure a
breadth and balance of expertise is available to the Board.

Crganisational Structure

The trustees are responsible for setting general policy, the strategic direction and growth of the Trust, adopting an
annual plan and Budget, manitoring the Trust and academies by the use of finansial mansgement and other
performance information, making appointments to the Execufive Management team, and approving the Annual
Report and Financial Statements.

The Chief Executive Officer is the accounting officer. The day to day management of the Trust is delegated to the
Executive Management Team (EMT). The EMT consists of the Chief Executive Cfficer, Academies Director,
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Operations Director and Chief Finance Officer. The EMT further delegates responsibilities to the Senior Leadership
Team {ELT} of each Academy. The SLT, a= appropriate to each academy, consists of the Headteacker, Deputy
Headieacher and Assistant Headteachers. These managers contral the Trust and academies at an executive [evel
implementing the policies laid down by the trustees and reporting biack to them. As 3 group the SLT fs responsible
for the authorization of spending within agreed budgets and the appointment of staff. Appointment boards for posts
in the EMT always contain a trustee. Some spending control is devolred o individual members of the managerment
team within agreed limits in the Scheme of Delegation.

The management teams include the EMT, the SLT at each academy in the Trust, the curricuium area Managers
and business suppart managers. These managers are responsible for the day to day aperation of the Trust and the
academies, in particular organising the: staff {leaching and non-teaching), facilities and students.

The trustees meet at least each term with the first meeting in each academic year being the Annual General Mesting.
Lecal Gaverning bodies, governance groups and sub-commitiees meef on at least a fermly basis. Trustees make
regular visitz to all academies, attending and supporting funetions. The Trusfs preserit gavemance stricture also
facilitstes periodic attendance by trustees at Local Boverning Body Meetings,

Responsibilities of trustess, governors, and senicr managers are clearly defined in the Trust Scheme of Delegation.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personne|

The remuneration of the Executive Management Team, Headteachers and other Senicr Leadership Team
mermhers of each academy is sef in accordance with the Trust pay poficy and the pay and conditions documents
for teachers and leaders. The performance of all members of these teams is appraised an an annua| basis. The
Trust Pay Committee for the Executive Management Teamn and Headteachers, and the Loeal Govemning Body Pay
Committess for other acaderny Senior Leadership team members reviews recommendations for their pay
progressien and other remuneration. The Trust Pay Committee cumently consists of 3 Trustses including the Chair,

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

The Chief Executive Officer, Mr Tarun Kapur C.B.E, acts a3 an independent Director praviding educational advice to
the Board of Manchester United Foundation. Mr Kapur also acts as Chair of the FA and Prermier League facilities
funding panel for the Football Foundation. The Football Foundation is the UK's largest sports’ charity funded by the
Fremier League, The Foothall Association and the Government, the Foundation directs £83m avery year into
grassroats sport. Their mission is to improve faciiities, create oppartunities and build communities throughout
England.

The Chair of Trustzes, Councillor Brian Righy M B.E. is a Trafford Councillor serving the Azhton upan WMersey ward
in the Borough. Councillor Righy, prior to bacoming Chair of the Board, was Chair of Ashton on Mersey Schaol
Goveming Body for 26 years overseeing the grawth and develapment of the school, leading the Governors through
4 consecutive Quistanding OFSTED inspections and acting ag a Mational Leader of Gavernance supparting and
advising several Governing Bodies,

Mr J T Shiels is Chief Executive of Manchester United Foundation. The goal of the Foundation is to educsta,
motivate and inspire future generations to build better communities for all. Part of the work involves partnerships
with sthools to ereate communify bubs and ta daidiver a range of educational programmes te primary and
sevondary schools.

Ms L iMcQue was the Chief Exacutive of North Wast Employers before stepping down in August 2017. North West
Employers is a not-for-profit organisation that exists to help organisations deliver better outcomes with and for Jocal
pecple. They are committed te and have a proud record in working with individuals and organisations o achieve
improvement.

Mr P Edwards is a director of Ashton on Mersey Teaching Schoo! Limited. (AOMTSL). AOMTSL is a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Dean Trust and operates as s company [imited by guarantee managing the business. The
retatianship is two way in that support can be commisgianed by the Trust for any one of its academiss and the
Teaching School ean commission support fram any of the Trust's academies to undertake Teaching School
contracts. This dynamic relationship ensures that all academies within the Trust can access high gquality support
whilst aiso benefiting from a talent pool.
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The Teaching School has key performance indicators which benefit the Trust as there is & clear sxpactation that all
members of a Teaching School alliance improve their cutcomes. The onus is on the Teaching School to facilitate
this, whether it be providing the necessary support, increasing expectatians thraugh gharing outstanding practice or
through the development of tatent management pathways.

This is mainly in relaiion to the activities of the Teaching School and principally involves collaborative warking
across a range of disciplines, primarily School to School Support, Initial Teacher Training and Professional
Leaming.

Obiectives and Activities

Ohbjects and Aims

The main objectives of the Trust during the year ended 31 August 2017 are summarised below, Trusteas are
pleased to report that all of these obiectives have been achisved:

+ To continue to review sfrategic growth opportunities that will achieve the Trust's mission and add value to
the organis=fion

»  To improve the effectiveness of the academies by keeping the curriculum and arganisational structures
under confinuous review and to work towards the objectives for all academies to achieve “Good".

= To devise and implement an effective financial plan to address the budgstary challenges at Broadoak
Sehool.

s  Tosuccessfully fransition from the temporary to permanent school site for Dean Trust Ardwick and ta
manage the growth in numbers at the academy in relation to tha PAN.

*  Toensure that the interest shawn by the Governors of Abraham (Suest Academy, Wigan and Blzcklow
Brow Primary School, Knowsley to become a Dean Trust Academy is thoroughly investinated. Subject to
due diligence and approval of the proposal by the Board, to provide a full program of support and transition
to integrate into the Trust.

+ To maintain strong govemance of the Trust at all levels

+ Ta confinue to develop the Trusfs support systerns and infrastructure in line with further growth.

«  To maintain close links with industry and commerse as well as Local Autharities and to utilise those lnks
for the henefit of the Trust and pupils.

Objectives, Strategies and Activities

The Trust's vision is to develop and maintain & culture of excellence across our organisation that provides fantastic
oppertunites for the children and students in our primary and secondary academies.

The Dean Trust is an organisation that provides opporfunities for staff and students alike. It embraces the local
cammunity to ensure that each Academy is at the heart, We aim for the communities in which we operate to be proud
of their local Dean Trost Academy,

As we continue fo grow, we are determined to remain an organisation of first choice'. We believe that if is
important that children are able to attend an at least 'Geood’ local school.

The Trust's approach to this strategy inciudes;

= Tuition and learning cpportunities for all students to attain appraprigte academic gualifications

» Training and development opportunities for all staff including high quality professional leaming far all Trust
employees,

s A careers advisory service to help students obtain employment of move en to higher sducation ar training.

s A wide range of enrichment opportunities inciuding a programme of pre and after schodi activities.
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Public Benefit

The Trust's purpose is to advance, for public benefit, education in the UK, in particular but without prejudice to the
generality of the furageing by establishing, maintaining, managing and developing the academies, offering & broad
and balanced curriculum. The Trustees have complied with their duty to have due regard to the guidance on public
benefit published by the Charlty Commission in exercising their duties.

Strategic Report
Achievements and Performance

The public examination results at GCSE, post 16 and Key Stage 2 achieved by pupils at Dean Trust academies are
summarised in the tables below (figures in hrackets relate to 2016 resulis). The framework for qualifications and
examinations have continued to influsnce the Trust's key academic performance statistics. Despite this, results
have been pleasing overall with schogl record (SCSE rasults in headline attainment achieved at Ashton on Mersey
Scheol, Lord Derby Academy and Dean Trust Wigan. The significant improvement in both Reading and
Mathematics at Key Stage 2 at Farest Gate Acadamy is also notable, Where performance at an acadamy has
dipped below expectations, @ robust review has been undertaken and ngerous improvement plan implemented.
The landscape continues to change making year an year comparability extremely difficult. The Trust has
undertaken a comprehansive and thorough review of examination performance in all academies and has put steps
in place fo retum {0 an upward trajectory as necessary in the farthcoming year.

Secondary Academies

The headline results are summansed as follows:

94 incl. |5+ A*-Cincl Key Stage 5 Key Stage 5
English & | English & & Level BTEC
Maths Maths A¥C DD
201617 2015-16 2016-17 2015-16 216-17 2015-16
Ashton on Mersey 67% 84.2% 79% 67% 44%, 43%
School
Breadoak School 52% 52.5% MN/A NiA NAA MN/A
Dean Trusi Ardwick MNSA hliA, hrA MSA MAA, MN/A
Lord Derby Academy 47 4% 39% M/A MIA NA MIA
Dean Trust Wigan 455 NiA NEA, M/A NiA MR,

Primary Academies

The percentage of pupils achieving expected |evel or above at Key Stage 2 are summarised as follows:

ENGLISH MATHS
2016-17 201516 201617 2r15-16
Farest Gate Academy R A2% Wi S8% R 21% W A% &68% 6%
Partingtun Central R 82% W 7% R 94% W B8% B0% 94%
Park View Academy R 61% W T4% E 94% W EB8% B6%% 4%

Other notable achievements acrass the Trust's academies during the period include;

= Continired upward trajeciory of pupil number growth at Lord Derby Academy has been maintained with
admissions to year 7 in September 2017 planned {o be at the PAN level of 240 pUpils.

» Significant development of IT systems architecture including the tramsitioning to a new Trust data centre
and migration to key T senvices to the "cloud”
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+ Financial perdomance meeting or exceeding the challenges of the budgetary and funding climate in the
education sector.

« Creation of an exciting new busingss opporiunity by working in partnership with a reputable soffwars
develapar to produce a new online fraining product for Mathematics teaching and pupil version (o support
leaming in Mathemaiics

« Advancement of the Trust's approach {o risk management by creating a robust assurance framework

« Aftainment of “Good” in the first OFSTED inspection of the Azhion on Mersey School SCITT.

+ Successzful conversion of Partington Central Academy on 1 September 2016 and transfer of Dean Trust
Wigan from its former sponsor ta the Trust on 1+ Apdl 2017

= Delivery of the new sports pavilion building at the Dean Trust Ardwick site to anhance sports facilities for
both the scheol and community.

s Admission of a further full cohort of 240 pupdls into the 3" year group at Dean Trust Ardwick from
September 2017

s Successful application for & new 1200 place secondary free school in Manchester.

«  Successiul reregotiation of key financial and business spansorship with Manchester United.

» Continued positive engagement with the Trust's principal sponsors tngether with expansion of partnerships
with major companies and organisations in the North West.

Going Concern

After making appropriate enguiries, the board of truztees has 2 reascnable expectation that the Trust has adequalts
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reasan, it continues to adopt the
going cancern basiz in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adeption of the gaing
cancetn basis can be found In the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Financizl Review

Maost of the Trust’s income is obtained from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) in the form of
recumrent grants, the uze of which is resiricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the ESFA in the
vear ended 315t August 2017 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of
Financial Activities.

The Trust also received grants from other srganisations. In ascordance with the Charities Statement of
Recommended Practice, “Accounting and Reporting by Charities” (SORP 2015), such grants are shown in the
Staternent of Financial Activities as resticted income in tha restricted genaral fund and fixed asset fund. The
resiricted fixed asset fund balance is reduced by depreciation charges over the expectad useful life of the assets
concamed.

Dwring the year ended 31+ August 2017, total expenditure of £34.0m {2016: £25 2m) was supported by recurrent
grant income from the ESFA together with ather incoming resources which fofalled £31.3m (2016: £24.5m)
exclusive of funds transferred upon conversion of Parington Central Academy and Dean Trust Wigan. The excess
of expenditure over income for the padod was £2.7m {2016: £0.7m). Total funds cartied forward amournt to
£120.1m (2016: £63.4m). This lavel of reserves enables the Trust to plan its future growth strategy from a salid
base, at the same time providing s cushion for the potentially turbulent financial climate prevailing in the short to
mediom {erm. The Trust would wizh to continue {0 invest prudently in the growth and development of the
organisation and its infrastructura,

Unrestricted income and expenditure, exclusive of funds transferred upan conversion of Partington Central
Academy and Dean Trust Wigan, in the year ended 31st August 2017 armourted to £0.6m (2016: £0.7m) and
FDR.5m {2016 £0,6m) respechively.

At 31st August 2017 the net book value of fiked asset: amounted to £122.4m (2016 £68.3m). Movernent in fixed

assets is shown in note 13 to the financial staterents. The cost of fixed asset additions [n the year ended 315t
August 2017 amounied to £2.0m [2016: £1.1m).
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The net liability of the Trust in the Local Govemment Pension Scheme (LGPS) amounts to £7.9m (2018: £6.7m) It
should however be noted that an immediate liability for this amount is not crystallised at the financial year end.
Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to 2 guarantes that, in the event af
academy trust closure, outstanding Local Govemment Pension Scheme liabilitiss would be met by the Department
for Education. The guarantee came Ints force on 18 July 2013, This guarantee provides comfort to the Trustees in
the event of an acaderny trust closure.

Employees and disabled persons

The Dean Trust is an equal oppertunity employer and proudly discloses this throughout its recruitment processes.
The Trust welcomes applications for employment from disablad persons.,

The Trust is responsive to changes to an employee's individual cireumstances through becoming disahled, which
includes making approptiate adjustments to working conditions. All employess of the Trust including those with
disability can expect to be afforded development and career rprogression that befits their skills and expertise.

The Trust ackhowledges the trade unions that represent all of its emplovees. A Jaint Consultative Committes
comprising of Trustees, senior eaders and employee union representatives is an established mechanism to
consult employees on matters affecting their employrmernt with the Trust.

Reserves Policy

Trustees review the level of resarves on an annual basis. This review encompasses the nature of income and
expendifure streams, th: need to match income with commitmants fincluding future cormmitments) and the type of
reserves. The Trust's current level of free reserves, represented by total reserves less the amounts held in fixed
assef reserve and restricted pension fund reserve is £4 80m. {20r16: £3.42m)

The Trust's medium term financial fargcasts, based upon current operating models and funding methodoiogy,
indicate some financial pressures at certain academies. At present there is also some uncertainty about the impact
of the new Mational Funding Fomuta on the future funding allocations for the Trust from 2018-18 and beyvond.

Trustees pfan to apply current free reserves balances to support in year deficits 45 necessary alongside robust
plans 1o align cperating costs with funding levels meving fanvard. The objective remains to maintain a reasonable
and prudent level of regerves in the future fo buffer unforeseen busingss interruptions, provide funds for capital
fnvestmernt, assist any short term cash flow pressure and support emergency raquirements. This is sound
commercial practice designed ta safeguard the Trust's business interests and quality of education at all of its
acadernies.

Investment Poficy

Cash balances are safeguarded by investing them in interest bearing current accounts with soUnd commerciz
banks (currently Lioyds Bank PLC).

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal risks o the Trust are docurnented and managed using a risk management policy and a risk register
which is regularly reviewsd.

The Trust has carmied out a careful review of the risks and uncertainfies it faces in the forthcaming year, In
summary these are viewed as;

* Pressures on grawth emanating from Govemment policy direction for mult academy Trusts to take an
additional schools

* Reputational damage arising from a drop in standards and academic performance

« Budgetary pregsures brought about by reduced public sector education spending and funding formula
changes

B|Fzgs



2617 | The Dean Trust

Impact of changes to school perfformance measures in terms of cumiculum structures

Downgrading of the current OFSTED repart for any Dean Trust academy following inspection

Financial challanges associated with the demographic position in Partington limiting pupil recruitment at
Braadoak School

Fay inflation resulfing from natienal minimurm wage increases in the short to medium term and proposed hift
of the public secior pay cap

Securing a suitable zite for the new LiKfast/Dean Trust free school in Manchaster

Challenge to stabilise the drop in pup# numbers at Dean Trust Wigan and place future intakes on upward
trend towards PAN

Erosion of reserves to balance budgets in the short to medium term
Suscession planning within Trust goavernance and executive leadership

Key conirols in place to mitigate these risks include:

Forensic data and annual examination performance analysis

Annual school improvement plans at alf academies of the Trust

Robust self-evaination pracedures and careful manitoring of teaching and leaming.

An organisational structure with clearly defined roles, responsiiiities and authorisation levels
Diocumented ferms of reference and policies for the governance of the Trust,

Financial pianning, multi-year budgeting and regular financial reporting to Governars, the Audit Committee
and Board of Trustees highlighting key areas of financial risk

Effective intermnal control systams that are reguiarly tested and monitored

Comprehensive internal audit processes to cover business reviews and routine health checks
Aurdit Committee challenge and scrutiny

Raobust due diligence procedures in place for growth of the Trust, new coniracts and commissions.

Estblizhment of a project feam to oversee the UKfast/Dean Trust free school project working alongside
Manchester City Council, ESFA and LocateEd officers

Plans for Future Periods

The Trust's plans for futtire perods include:

i |

To revisit the growth strategy in light of the changing education sector landscape particulatly around free
school provision, continuing to develop the excellent working refationships already enjoyed with Manchester
City Council to explore opportunitizs in the city addressing their burgeoning growth in school place demand,
Ta maintzin the concentration of focus around our 3 hubs in the North West region and maximise growth
oppartunities therein to add value ta the Trust and continue to support cur missian. In this context 1o explore,
subject to rigorous due diligence the addition of new schools into the Trust in ling with the aspiration to
become a medium sized regionat MAT.

To integrate Blacklow Brow School successfully inta the Trust fram 19 September 2017,

To work closely with the EFSA, LocateEd and Manchester City Councit to source and secure a suitable site
for the new Dean TrustlWfast secondary fres schoal.

To keep under reviow the Executive Management Team siructure and compesition to ensure sufficient
capacify to meet growth demands and is entirely robust across the Trust,

To manage the fransition at Trust Board level from the retining Chair of Trustees to @ new Chair,

To achieve a good outcome in the forthcoming first OFSTED inspection of Dean Trust Ardwick

To continue the mathematics education strategic hubs [nitiative for the Morth West licence awardad to Ashton
an Mersey School. To develop further “products” from Maths Hub research and inncvation that can be
succgssiully marketed by the Trust.

[12]
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=« Tocontinue the improvemeant journey in attainment at Key stage 2 at Forest Gate Academy and Partington
Central Academy, To improve the attainmant and progress measures at Park View Acadenmnty.

+ Tofurther examing governance struciures and operations via integration of Local Governing Bodies within
Dean Trust Hubs where appropriate and beneficial. To move further towards full electronic communication
and media for Gevemning Body and Trust Board mestings and to develop a suitable portal in arder to facilitate.

+ 10 shrive for continuous improvement in examinations results and all indicators of performance in all of the
Trust's academies

+  To maximise the apportunities afforded by the MAT allocatian of strategic capital funding to the Trust in order
ta improve the Trust estate across all academies.

+« To continue fo address the pressures on admissions at Ashion on Mersey School as & result of tha
disproportionzate level of stafutory admissfon of pupils with education health and care pians. To continue to
lobbyy the Local Authority for more equitable distribution at other secondary schools in the Borough,

+  Toreview the function of the Teaching School within Trust expansion and to consider the optimum scale of
operation for the SCITT given the landscape for allocation of students.

» Tomaintain the trajectory of grewth in pupil numbers at Lord Derby Academy

* Tocontinue the growth in pupil numbers at Park View Academy.

* Todevelop a plan for growth in pupil numbers at Bean Trust Wigan.

« To continue to¢ develop the work of the intemnal audit function in providing an advisory platfiarm to inform
strategies around changing business nesds

= To further develop the risk management and board assurance framswork as a key govemance and
rmanagement tool.

*  Towork with the RSC and Knowsley Education Commission to improve educational sutcomes far 2|l children
withfh Knowsley schools and academies,

* To continue to update medium fo long term financial forecasts to provide dlarity on future financial heakth of
the Trust particularly in the context of the new National Funding Formula

» To continue to develop rebust and sustainable plans to align the operational costs of the Trust with available
funding streams

» To explore and exploit business opportunities to provide sdditional commercial revenue stream in support of
the Trust's objects.

» Tofurther tha drive for greater efficiency and ecanomies scale as an imperative

Excellent standards of behaviour will be maintained to create well-ordered learming environments with support of
students at the heart. Pupil numbers In all Dean Trust academies will be sustained or grown. Trangitional
amangements for pupils entering the Trust's secondary academies will be well planned and strietured, providirg
support far pupils at this important stage of their education, The cumriculum will be broad, balanced and relevant in
all key stages from EYFS to K55 allowing all puplls and students to achieve fheir full potential,

Teaching and leaming will have pace, purpose, variety, ¢hallenge and rigaur, Pupils and students will be able to
progress as & result of personalised programmes of study supported by a virtual leaming enviranment available
anling. Al pupils and students will be competent users of ICT, will be aware of their own strengths and weaknesses
and, through assessment for leaming, know how to improve their attainment and achievemnent.

Staff will be strong and confident practitioners with appropriate professional development opportunities,
Educational cutcomes in all key reported performance indicators will be challenged by aspirational and robust
target setting underpinned by strong govemance and leadership intervention. Teaching will be at least good az
evidenced by camprahensive IQTL. The strategic development of all academies in tha Trust will be effectively
planned, manitored and supported by well-equipped and committed local governing bodies held o account by the:
Board of Trustees.

Auditor

In s far as the Trustees are sware:

W|Fags



201617 | The Dean Trust

there is ng relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware

the tnustees have taken ali steps that they cught fo have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The Trustees' report, incarporating & strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees as the
company directors on 180 December 2017 and signed on its behalf by:

Brian Righy MBE H‘%

Chair of Trustees
180 December 2017
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Governance Statement
Scope of Responsibijity

Az thugtees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Dean Trust has an sffective and
appropriate system of control, financial and othenwise. Such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate
the rigk of failure fo achieve business abjsctives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance
against materal misstaternent or Ioss,

The Board of Trustees has delegated day-to-day responsibility to the Ghief Executive Officer, 8 accounting officer,
for ensuring financial contrals conform with the requirements of both propriety and gead financial management and
that these are in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreements
between The Dean Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. The Chief Executive Officer is also responsible
for reporting to the Board any material weaknasses or breakdowns in irternal control.

Trustees and Gavernors are wall trained and are committed to attending training that enhances understanding of
their respensibilities and legal function. This equips them with the knowledge to pravide hoth chailenge and support
for the seniar leadership teams at all of the academies in the Trust. The Schems of Delegation balances the need
for control with empowering Local Governing Bodies to be accountable for the performance of the academy that
they gavem.

Governance

The information on governanes ineluded here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statenent of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees fomnally met 5 times during the year ended 31+
August 2017. Attendance during the period at these meetings was as follows {members who joined during the
course of the year have their attendance reported on the basis of the maximum nurmber of meetings that they could
have attended following their appointmerit):

Trustee Meefings attended Out of a possikle
Cllr B Rigby MBE

Mr T Kapur CEE

MrJ T Shiels

Mir & Faimer

Ms L Wellue (resigned 15.8.17}
Mr P J Edwards

Mr D McGann

Wlr J Bowers (appainted 17.7.17)

— i I O s tw Ch h
= O AT A L dn noLn

The Board is supported by a Govemance Suppart Officer whe also pravides advice and guidance to Local
Goveming Bodies. During the course of the year the size, structure and compeasition of the Board and the Lacal
Goveming Bodies was further reviewed in light of the continued growth of the Trust. This is an ohgeing process to
ensure that governance remains robust and challenging as well as creating capacity for succession. In addition, a
number of new Trustees and Governors have been appointed to both the Board and to Local Goveming Badies
with particular reference to skill sets that strengthen and enhance their work. This recruitment has been very
successfui and has followed a skills audit undertaken by the Trust's Governance Officer. An annual conference and
training event has been introduced to the calendar at which all Trustess, Governors and Senior Leaders meet to
review and develop the Trust's strategic plans and objectives.
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The audit commitize is a commilttes of the Baard of Trustees and cansists of bofh trustees and indepeandent
representatives. Its purpose is to support the Board in fulfilling its responsikilities with régard to tha financial,
buginess risk management and wider internal contrp] framewaork of the Trust. In future financial years, meetings of
the audit committee will number at least 4 as the work of the commities continues to develop.

The terms of reference of the audit committes have been further developed during the year and this provides

resilience to the Board reporting mechanisms. The committee contains 3 independant members alongside &
trustee.

Attendance at meefings during the year ended 31* August 2017 was as foliows:

Audit Committee

Meetings attendad Qut of a possible
ir P Edwards {Trustee) Z 4
Mr G Page 4 4
W M Johnson 4 4
Firs A Chaudry {resigned 5.07.17) 3 3
Br T Kapur {Accounting Officer) 4 4
e N David 4 4

Mr T Kapur and Mr M David attended these meetings in the capacity of Accounting Officer and Chief Finance
Officer of the Trust respectively.

The Finance Governance Groups have met on a reqular basis throughout the year. Attendance at meetings in the
vear ended 317 August 2017 was as follows:

Finance Governange (Group- Dean Trust Central and East hubs

Governer IMeetings attended Cut of a possibie
Mr A Melaren 3 3
Miss S Smith 3 3
Mirs ¥V Thorpo 3 3
Wr P Costelioe 3 3
Mr N Bavid 2 3
Mr D Warren (appointed 4 10.15) 3 3

ir N David aitended these meetings in the capacity of Chief Finance Officer of the Trust.

Finance Govemanca Group- Dean Trust West hub
Governor IMeestings atiended Oyt of 2 possible
Mrs [ Tuzio
Mrs A Hearn
Mr & Morgan
bir B Bridden
Mrs B Williamson
itrs ¥V Gowan
kir H Davies (appointed 35.11.18)
kir G Lathami{appointed 30.11.16)

b I AWV T ) O T I P
B B Lo G L L0 D L

tr B Bridden, Mrs ¥ Gowan and Mrs P Williamseon atiended these meetings in their capacity as lead professional
AVISErS,

Feview of Value for Money
As accounting officar, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuting that the academy trust delivers
good value far moneay in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money

refers to the educational and wider sociefal cutcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resaurces received.

The accaunting officer congiders how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during
each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, including the
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use of benchmarking data where available. The accounting officer for the academy trust has delivered improved
value far money dunng the year by:

= Introduction of a "Bring Your Own Device™ policy for post 16 students at Ashton on Mersey School to
reduce reliance on in house portable hardware provision.

»  Successful bid to the Foatball Foundation contributing £858,000 of funding to a new sparts changing
pavilion development at Dean Trust Ardwick represanting 87% of overs|l project cost.

» Reviewing the structures within back office functions and central Trust services to streamline activities,
reduce wastage and increage efficiency

= Continting to promote the Teaching School ta delivar system led improvements in @ number of schogls
and academies in the North Wast region. Grow the partnership with Best Practice Network for delivery
of a nationzl leadership training and development programime,

Suceessfully applying for sponser capacity funding in support of the Trust's grawth plan.
Utilising the SCITT to provide & production line of high quality hewly qualified teachers into Trust
academies and the teaching profession as a whole.

» Re-tender of the Trust insurance confract fora 3 year tetm resulting in cost neutral premiums on
improved terms acrass the Trust and despite the significant growth in sums insured in & rigk
undernriiing categories,

*  Re-tender of the Trust energy supply contracts to lock prices against market volatility aver a Z-year
term. Review of the Trust's future approach to energy efficiency, particularly for electricity, by
researching options around solar power.

+ Achieving the pupil number growth targets at Dean Trust Ardwick by admitfing up to the FAN of 240
Supporting the school place planning chalienges in Manchester by taking additional pupils into the
Year 7 cohort.

= Improving measurable outcomes in all Dean Trust academies in the context of reduced funding for
education.

+ Continued integration of IT systems infrastructure to strengthen resilience, eliminats duplication of
maintenance and support arangements, reduce cost of on premise hardware via migration of certain
IT systerns fo the cloud and enable efficient implementation of Trust systems and processes into new
academies.

The Purpose of the System of Internai Control

The syztem of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
faflure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonahble and not abhsolute
assuranea of effectiveness. The system of internal controf is based on an on-going process designed ta identify
and priaritise the risks to the achievement of Trust policies, aims and abjectives, to evaluate the likelihood of thase
risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manzge them efficiently, effectively and
economically. The system of internal control has been in place in The Dean Trust for the year ended 31 August
2017 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements,

Capacity to Handie Risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed tha key risks ta which the Trust is axpoased together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented fo mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is of
the view that there is a formal on-going procass for identifying, evaluating and managing the acagdemy trust's
significant risks that has been in place for the yaar ended 31 August 2017 and up to the date of approval of the
annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustoes.

The Risk and Contral Framework

The Trust's system of intermal financial control is based on 2 framework of teqular management information and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountabifity. In
particular, it includes:

= establishment of an effective and consistent agsurance framework for all Governing Bodies

« comprehensive budgeting and monftoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financia! reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;
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s regular reviews by the Board, audit committee and Local Gaverning Bodies of reports which indicate
financial performance against the forecasts and of major purchasa plans, capital works and expenditure
programimnes;

= creafing a congistency of approach in key systems and processes across the Trust to mitigate risk of local

vanance

setting targets o measure financial and other performance;

cleariy defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment} guidelines;

delegation of autherity and segregation of duties;

identification and management of risks.

internal audit reviews of business processes and risk areas.

L B B B B

The work of the internal audit team has been widened in scope as & result of growth in the Trust's business
interasts.

The internal audit plan includes performing a range of checks on the Trust's financial systerns and internal controls.
On 2 quarerly basis the internal auditor perfarms these checks and reports to the audit committes on the cperation
of systermns of control and on the dischargs of the Board of Trustees” financial responsibilities. The plan also
ingludes thematic reviews of the Trust's overall business activities and functions within an agreed programme
driven by an assessment of key business risks

Review of Effectiveness

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has respongibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

» the work of the Audit Committee

« the work of the internal auditor;

+ the work of the external auditor,

+ the financial management process;

s the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who hawve responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the intermal control framework.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of thair review of the system of internal

control by the AudiE Committee and a plan to address minor weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of
the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of
Trustess on 18% December 2017 and signed on its behatf

by:
N y - £ N . -
//’." P
Brian Rigby MEE Tarun Kapur CBE
Chair of Trustees Chief Executive Officer and

Accounting Crficer
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Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting officer of The Dean Trust | have considerad my responsibility to notify the academy trust Board of
Trustzes and the Education snd Skills Funding Agency (ESFA} of materiat irregularity, impropriety and non-
¢compliznce with ESFA terms and conditiuns of funding, under the funding agreement in place betwaen the
academy trust and the Secratary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the
requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2016.

| contirrn that | and the acadamy trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any materal imegular or impreper use
of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and canditions of funding under the
academy trust's funding agresment and the Academies Financial Handbook 2018,

| confirm that no instances of material irreqularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been diseoverad to

date. If any instances are fdentified after the date of this staternent, these will be notified to the board of frustees
and ESFA.

Tamun Kapur CBE
Accounting Officer

18th December 2017
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Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities

The trustess, who are respansible for governanss of The Dean Trust, are the directors of the chartable company
for the purposes of company law. They are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial
statements in accordance with the Academies Ascounts Dirgction 2016 ta 2017 published by the Education and
Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdam Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Gengrally Acceptsd Actounting
Fractice} and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees 1o prepare financial statements for each finandial vear. Under company law the
trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the chariiable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including
its income and expenditure, for that period. 1n preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to:

s select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently:

+ observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2016 te 2017,

+ make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state whether applicable UK Agcounting Standards [FRS 102] have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

s prepare the financial staferments on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The frustees are responsible for keeping adequate accouniing records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2008,
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularties.

The trustees are responsible for ensurng that in its conduct and aperation the chartable company applies financial
and other controls, which conform to the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They
are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DIE have been applied far the purposes intended.
The trustees are responsible for the maintznance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the chariable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdum goveming the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legiglation in other jurizdictions.

Approved by arder of the members of the board of trustees on 15th Dacamber 2017 and signed on its behalf by:

o A

Erian Rigby MBE
Chair of Trusiees
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independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
to the Members of The Dean Trust

Dpinion

We have audiied the financial statements of The Dean Trust for the year ended 31 August 2017, which comirise the
Statement of Finarcial Activities incorporating Income and Expendifure Account, Balance Sheet, Statement of Gash
Flows, and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied In their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards {United Kingdom Gengrally Accepted Aceaunting Practice), including FRS 102 'The Financial Reporiing
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland'.

This report is made salely ta the Azademy Trust members, as a body, in ascardance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our andit work has been undertaken so that we might state fo the Academy Trust members
those matters we are requirad {o state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
pemitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone ather than the Academy Trust and it
members, as a body, for aur audit work, for this report, or for the opinicns we have formed.

In our opinian the financial staternents:

*  give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2017 and of
its incoming resources and application of resources, inciuding its income and expenditure, for the
year then ended;

= have been propery prepared in acoordance with United Kingdom Generally Accapted Accounting
Practice:

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008,

* have been prepared in accardance with the Charities SORP 2015 and Academies Accoumnts
Direction 2018 {0 2017,

Basis for cpinion

¥We conducted aur audit in accordance with Infemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (1525 (UK)) and applicahle law.
Qur respangibilities under those standards are further described in the Audiior's responsibiliies for the audit of the
financtal statements section of our report. We are independent of the academy in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial staterments in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibiiities in accordance with thesa requiremesnts. We beiigve that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide @ basis for our opinicn.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (LM} rediuire us to report
to you where:

* the trustees use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statemants is not appropriate; or

* the trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material urcertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the academy's ability to continue to adopt the going concem basls
of aceounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements arg
authorised for issue.

Other informatian

The trustees are responsible for the other informatian. The other information comprizses the information included in
the annuai report, other than the financial statements and our auditer's repart theraon. Our opinfor on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent othenwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of asswrance conciusion thereon.
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the
Members The Dean Trust {continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing 80, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be matedally misstated. f we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are reguired to determine whether thers is a materigl
misstatement in the financial stafements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work
we have perfonmed, we concluds that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we ares required to
report that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regard,

Opinien on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ fthe information given in the Strategic Report and Trustees' Report for the financial vear for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

« the Strategic Report and Trustee's Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matiers on which we are regutired to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatemnents in the Strategic Report and Trustzes” Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 20086 requires us to report to
you if, in our opinion;

+  adequate accounfing records have not been kept, or retums adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

= the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or
= certain disclosures of trustees remuneration specified by law are not made; or

= we have nof received all the information and explanations we require for our audit,
Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Staterment of Trustee's Report [set out on page 19), the trusiees are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being safisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from materiat misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor,

In pregaring the financial statements, the trustess are responsible for assessing the academy's ability to continue as
a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concem basis of
accounting unless the frustees either intend to liquidate the academy or 1o cease operations, or have no realictic
alternative but to do so.

Aundifor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to abiain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 2 whaole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and o issue an auditars report that includes our opinion.
Reazonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not @ guarantes that an audit conducied in accordance
with 1S3As (UK} will always detect 2 material misstaterneant when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud ar error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasanably be expected to influznce the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1S4s (UK), we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism througheut the: audit. We also:
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independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the
Members of The Dean Trust {continued)

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial staternents, whether dug to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to pravide a basis for our apinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud fs higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve coffusion, forgery, intenfional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intersal
contral.

= Obtain an understanding of intermal contral relevant to the audit ity arder to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the academy's internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriatenass of accounting pelicies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the trustees.

*  Conclude on the appropristeness of the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accaunting and,
hased on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt an the academy's ability to continue as & gaing concern,
If we coneclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 1o draw attention in our auditar's
report i the related disclosures in the financial staterments or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are hased on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the academy to cease to continue
as a going concem.

*  Evaluate the averall presentafion, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the finandial statements represent the unhderlying transactions and events
in & manner that achisves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the enfities ar
business activities within the academy to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the academy audit. We remain solely
responsiblie for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matiers, the planned scope and tirning
of the audit sfd significant audit findings, including any significant defisiencies in internal control that we identify

during our L it J}
L/*tquffﬂ

Anna Bennett (Senior Statutary Auditor)
For and on behaif of Hallidays, Statutory Auditor

Riverside House

Kings Reach Business Park
Yew Sireet

Stackport

Sk4 2ZHD

DCrate: 18 December 2017
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Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity
to The Dean Trust and the Education Funding Agency

In accordance with the termz of our engagement lefter and, further to the requirements of the Education and Skills
Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2016 fo 2017, we have carried out an
engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure dishursed and income received by The
Dean Trust during the year ended 318 August 2017 has been applied to the purpases identified by Parliatent and
the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to The Dean Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letier,
Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to The Oean Trust and the ESFA thase matters we are
required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent parmitted by kaw, we da not accept or
assume respongibility to anyone other than The Dean Trust and the ESFA, for our wark, for this report, or for the
conclugion we have farmed,

Respective responsibilities of The Dean Trust’s accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Deaan Trust's master funding agreements with
the Secratary of State for Education dated 25 August 2015 and the Academies Financial Handbook extant from 1
September 2018, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intendead
by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authanties which gavermn them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdam by aur profession's ethical guidance
and are to obtain [imited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of
tha Academies Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017, We repart to you whether anything has come to our attention in
carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure dishursed and income received
during the year ended 31% August 2017 have not been applied fo purposes intended by Parliament or that the
financial fransactions do not conform to the aothonities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2016 te 2017 issued by the
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagemeant letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures a5 o abtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
reoularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonakle assurance engagement and
sonsequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in 2 reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Qur engagement includes examinaiion, on a test basis, of svidencs relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
acaderny trust's income and expeanditure. The work undertaken to draw our conclugion includes: -

»  We have confirmed that the activiies conform to the academy trust's framework of authorities. As
identified by review of minutes, management acoounts, discussion with the sccounting officer and other
key management persgnnel.

= We have camied out an analytical review a3 part of the consideration of whether gengral activities of the
academy trust are within the academy trust's framework of authorities.

a  We have considered the evidence supporting the accounting officer's statement on regularity, propriety and

compliance and have evaluated the genaral control environment of the academy trust and extended the
procedures required for financial statements to include regularity.

H|Fage
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= We have assessed and tested a sample of the specific contrel activities aver reguiarity of a particular
activity. In performing sample testing of expanditure, we have considered whether the activity is
permissible within the academy trusts framework of authorities. We confirm that each ftemn testad has been
appropriately authorised in accordangs with the academy trust's delegated authorities and that the internal
delegations have been approved by the govermning body and conform to the limits set by the Department for
Education.

= Formal representations have been obtained from the Trust Board and the zccounting officer acknowladging
their respongibilities including disclosing all non-compliance with laws and regulations specific to the
autharizing framework, access to accounting records, provision of information and explanations, and othear
matters wiere direct evidence is not available.

* |n performing sample festing of expenditure, we have reviewed agasinst specific terms of grant funding
within the funding sgresment We have reviewed the list of suppliers and have considered whether
supplies are from related parfies and have reviewed minutes for evidence of declaration of interest, and
whether or nat there was invalvernent in the decision to order from this supplier,

* We have performed sample testing of other income and tested whether activities are permitted within the
academy trust's charitable objects.

Conclusion

In the caurse of our work nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year ended 319 August 2017 has not been applied to
purpages intended by Parliament and the finansial transactions do nat conform to the authorites which govem
them.

Moo

Hallidays, Chartered Accountants
Riverside House

Kings Reach Business Park

Yew Street

Stockport

S5k4 ZHD

Date: 18th Decermber 2017
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

as at 31 August 2017
{Company Numbsr 08027843)

2017 2017 2016 21e
Motas £°000 £000 £ 000 £'000
Fixed assats
Intangible aszets 0 0
Tangible azzets 13 122,397 68,314
Current assets
Stook 14 16 50
Debtors 15 1,839 2,222
Cash =t bank and in hand 7,881 4,328
9,836 8,601
Liabiliies
Creditors: Amounts falling due within cre year 16a {4,135} {2,695}
Net current assets 5701 3,908
Total assets less current liabilities 128,098 2220
Creditors: Amourts falling due after more than 18b (90) (109)
one year
Net assets ([exciuding pension liability) 128,008 T2, 11
Defined benefi pension scheme liability 28 .45 {(5.713)
120,063 63,5398
Total assets
Funtls of the academy trust:
Restricted funds
Fixed azset fund 17 123,118 08, 638
Restricted income fund 17 852 801
Pension reserne 17 D45 {8.713)
Total restricted funds 116,025 60,776
Unrestricted income funds 17 4038 2,622
Total funds 120,063 53,3598

The financial statemenis on pages 23 to 50 were approved by the trustess, and authorized for issue on 15ih
December 2017 and are signed on its behalf by

St o

Etan Rigby
Chair of Trustees



Academy Trust Balance Shest
as at 31 August 2017

{Company Number QBOZ7943)

Fixed assets
Intangible Assets
Tangible as=zet=

Current assels

Stock

Debiors

Cash at bank and in hand

Liabilides
Credifors: Amounts falling due within cne year

Met current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: Armounts falling due after more than
one yesar

Met assets {excluding pensian liability)
Defined benefit pension scheme liakility

Total as=et=

Funds of the academy trust:

Restricted funds
Fixed asset fund
Restricted income fund
FPension resene

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted Income funcds

Tatal funds

MNotes

13

14
15

163

16k

28

17
17
17

17

2M7
£'900

16
1,240
7,559
9,815

(4,125)

123,118
852

{7,945}

120,052
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017
£000

122,397

5,690
128,087

(90)

127,997

{7,345}

120,052

116,025

4,027

2016 2016
£000 £00

0

68,314
50
2,280
4,226
8,556
(2,679}

3877

72,191

{(108)

72,082

{8,713}

83,360
62,688
801
{8,713)

60,776

2,563

63,369

The financial statements on pages 23 1o 50 were approved by the trustess, and authorised for issue on 18th

December 2017 and are signed on its behalf by

Erian Rigby
Chair of Trustees
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Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 August 2017

Motes
Cash flows from operating activities
Met cash provided by {used in) operating activitias 21
Cash flows from investing activities 23
Cash flows from financing activities 22

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 2016

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2017

ZME6—17 | The Dean Trust

2017 2016
£ £

219 (1,346)

{14} 291
2,647 (1)
3,552 {1,056)
4,329 5,385
7,881 4,329
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2017

1. Statement of accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set cut below.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared
under the historcal cost convention in accomdance with the Financial Repeorting Standard Applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland (FR5102}, the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommeanded Practics
applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporiing Standard applicable in
the: UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102} {Charities SORP (FRS102Y), the Academies Accounts Direction 2015 to
2016 issusd by EFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

The Academy Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

The Statement of Financial Activities (SOFA) and Balance sheet consalidate the financial statements of the
academy trust and its subsidiary undertaking. The results of the subsidiary aré consalldated on a line by ine hasis,

No separate SOFA has been presented far the academy trust alone as permitted by section 4038 of the Companies
Act 2006 and paragraph 357 of the SORP.

Going Concemn

The trustess assess whether the use of going concern is appraptate 1.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or condtiions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to
continug as a going cancern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a perpd of at least one year from
the date of authorisation for issue of the financial staternents and have concluded that the academy trust has
adequate resources o continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there arg no material
uncerainties about the academy tnist's ability to continue as a going concem, thus they continue te adopt the
going coneern basis of accounting in preparing the inancial statements.

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probable
and the amouni can be measured reliably.

»  Grants

Grants are incduded in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purpases but nat expended during the peried is shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any peffarmance-related conditions there
s not unconditional entittement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income unfil the performance-related conditions are met. Where entilement occurs kefore income
is received, the income is accrued.

General Annoal Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the yvear for which it is

receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted fram income and recognised as a
liability.

Capital grants are recogrised when receivable and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they
are expendad. Linspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance in the restricted fixed asset
fund,
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s Sponsorship Income
Sponsorship income provided fo the academy trust which amounts to a denation is recogrifsed in the
Statement of Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable {where there are no peformance-
related conditions}, where the receipt is prabable and it ¢an be measured rediably.

+ Donations

Donations are recugnised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-redated condifions) where
the receipi is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

« Other Income

Other incoms, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
academy trust has provided the goods ar services.

» Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for regale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale [ess the
expected costs of sale. Ifit is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and
‘Income from other frading activities, Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against 'Income from
ather trading actfvities' and the proceeds are recognised as 'Income from other trading activities’. Where i
is impractical to fair value the items due fo the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the
financial staterments until they are sold. This income is recognised within 'Income from other trading
activities’,

Yhere the denated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair valus, unless it is impractical to measure this
reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor shauld be used. The gain is recognised as income
from donations and a corresponding amount is included in the apprapriate fixed asset category and
depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the academy trust's accounting palicies.

* Transfer on conversion

Whers assets are recsived by the trust on conversion to an academy, the transferred assets are meagured
at fair value and raecagnised in the balance sheet at the point when the risks and rewards of ownership
pass ta the trust. An equal amount of income is recognised as transfer on conversion within donaticns and
capital grant income.

» Transfer of existing academies into the trust

Vhere assets are received on the transfer of an existing academy into the trust, the transferred assets are
measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the point when the risks and rewards of
ownership pass to the trust, which is on signing of the transfer agreement with the transferring trust. An
equal amount of income is recognised as transfer on conversion within donations and capital grant income,

Expenditure

Expenditure is recagnised once thers is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefitfo a third
party, it is probable that & transfer of sconomic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the
abligation can be measured refiably, Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of
the total of direst costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each aciivity. Direct costs
attributable to a single actvity are afiocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one
activity and support cosis which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on
a basls consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated an the basis of fime spent, and
depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

28| Fags



201617 | The Dean Trust

« Expenditure on Raising Funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its chantable purposes and
inciudes costs of all fundraising activiies events and non-charitable frading.

« Charitable Activities

These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational sperations, inciuding support staff costs
relating to the govermnance of the academy trust appartioned to charitable activities,

Al resources expended are inclusive of imecoverable VAT,
Basis of consoclidation

The finangial statemeants consolidate the accounts of The Dean Trust and all of its subsidiary undertakings
{"subsidiaries’) including Ashton on Mersey Teaching Schoot Ltd. The Academy Trust has taken advantage of the

exemption contained within section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present its own inceme and expenditure
accouni.

Tangible Fixed Assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as fangible fixed assets and are carried 2i cost, net of depreciation
and any provision for impaiment.

Whera tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or fram
the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful
economic fe. The related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Staterment of Financial Activities
and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on such assets is charged to the restricted fixed asset fund
in the Statement of Financial Activities so as to reduce the fund over the useful economic life of the related asset
on a basis consistent with the academy trust's depreciation policy.

Depreciation is provided on all tangikle fixad agsets other than freehold land, ai rates calculated fo write off the cost
of each asset on a straight-line/reducing balance bagis over its expected useful life, as fallows:

Leasehold land 0.5% p.a. straight-line
Buildings 2% p.a. straight-fine

Plant & Machinaty 20% p.a. reducing balance
Fixtures, fittings and equipmant 20% p.a. reducing balance
IcT 3 - 5 years straight-line
Mator Vehicles 25% p.a. straight-line

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until they are
brought into use.

A review far impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
camying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shartfalis between the camying value of fixed assets and
their recoverakle amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of
Financial Activities.

Assets classified as land and buildings are revalued every b years.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when thare is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it i
probabile that a transfer of economic banafit will be required in settlement, and the amournt of the seitlement can be
estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the acadermy trust anticipates it will pay to seifle the
debt ar the amount it has received ss advanced payments for the goods of gervices it must provide.

3
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Provisions

Provizions are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past
event which if is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be sstimated
refiably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to setife the obligation. Where the effect of
the time value of money is material, the pravision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at
the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks speciic to the kability. The unwinding of the diseount is recognised
within interest payable and sirmilar charges.

Leased Assets
Rentals urider operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lezse term.
Investments

The trust’s shareholding in the whelly awned subsidiary, Ashton on Mersey Teaching School Limited, is included in
the balance sheet at the cost of the share capital owned less any impairment. There is no readily availaile market
value and the cost of valuation exceeds the benefit derived,

Financial instruments

The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments defined in FRS102. The financial assets and financial
liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Finarcial assets — trade and nther debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instrurments measyred at
amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Prepaymeants are not financial instruments. Armounts dug to the charity's
whally owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

Cash at bank — iz classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value,

Finarwial lizbilities — trade creditors, aceruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at
ameortised cost as detailed in note 16. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments
disclosure definitfen. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash setilement has already
taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts
due to charity's wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment,

Stock
Uniforms and statienery stocks are valued at the lowsr of cost or net realisable value.
Taxation

The acadermy trust is considerad to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedulz 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for LK comporation tax purposes. Agcordingly, the
academy trust is polentially exempt from taxation in respect af income or capital gains received within categones
«overed by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 258 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains
At 1992, to the extent that such income or gaing are applied exclusively to chartable PINDOSEs,

Pensions Benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Schame {"TPS") and
the Local Government Pension Scheme {LGP3’). These are defined benefit schemes and the assets are held
separately from those of the academy trust.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employess’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially leve!
percentage of current and future pensicnable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Govermment Actuary

MiFage
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on the basis of quinquennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. As stated in Note 28, the TPS iz a
multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient information availabiz to use defined benefit accounting. Tha TRS is
therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the
nerod to which they relate.

The LGPS is & funded scheme and the asseis are held separataly from those of the academy trust in separate
trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and Habilities are measured on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of
returt on a high quality corperate bond of equivalent term and curency to the liakilities. The actuarial valuations
are cbtained at least friennially and are updated at ¢ach balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating
surplus are the current service costs and the ¢osts of scheme introductions, benefit changes, selilerents and
curtaiiments. They are included as part of staff costs 25 incurred. Met interest on the net defined benefit
|iabilityfasset is also recognised in the Staterment of Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost an the
defined benefit obligatian and interest income on the scheme assets, caleulated by multiplying the fair value of the
scheme assets at the beginning of the pariad by the raie used to discount the henefit abligations. The difference
hetween the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in

other recognised gains and Iosses. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other gains and
losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in ather recognised gains and losses,

Fund Accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the chantabls
ohjecis of the academy trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricied fixed asset funds are resaurcss which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by the
funders where the asset acquired ar created Is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise ali other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/donor
and include grants from the Education Funding Agency/Bepariment for Educatian.

Gritical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
ineluding expectations of fuiure events that are believad to be reasonable under the gircumstances.

The academy trusi makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by definition, seldam egual the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the camying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below,

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit lisbility depends on a number of
factars that are determined on an actuarial basis using & vatdety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discaunt rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which
are disclosed in note 28, will impact the carrying amount of the pensions liabllity. Furthemore, a roll ferward
approach which projects resuks from the |atest full actuania! valuation parformed at 31 March 2016 has been used
by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 315t August 2017 Any differences between the figures derived
from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuafion would impact on the cartying amount of the pension
liabifity.

HM|Fzce
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2. Donatiens and Capital Grants

Festricted Restricted
Unrestricted General  Fixed Asset
Funds Funds Funds Total 2017  Total 20496
£'000 E"Do0 £'000 E"000 £*000
Capital Grants 4] Q 596 Ga6 144
Fixed assets inhetited upen transfercomnersion ) 0 5,343 54,843 4,325
Resenes inharited upen transfer’conversion 1,828 {704) a 1,122 {E27)
Donations 26 1] g 35 =
1,352 (7041 55,508 56,656 3,892
3. Funding for the Academy Trust's Educational Operations
FResatricted
Restricted Fixed
Urrestricted Gengral Azset
Funds Funds Funds Total 2017 Tatal 2016
£'000 E£'D00 £7000 £'600 £9000
DME ! ESFA grants
- General Annual Grant (GAG) ] 23,876 8] 23.516 17,754
- Start up Grants ] il 2 i) K]
- Other HE { EFA Grants a 3,333 1,289 4,621 2,721
Maftional Collega grants g2 Q0 0 &2 49
G2 26,848 1,289 28,1990 20,602
Cther Gavernment grants
- Lacal Authority grants o 1.242 11T 1,253 2. 465
- 3pecial educational projects 1) 0 0 0 0
a 1,242 11 1,263 2,465
Dther |I1l.‘-¢|‘l!'l&h froem tha an‘ademy o g3 0 a3 - 136
trust's educational operations
] 93 a a3 136
62 23,183 1,300 29,545 23,203
4. Other Trading Activities
Restricted Restricted
Urrestricted General  Fixed Asset
Funds Funds Funds Taotal 2017  Total 2016
£7000 £000 E'ODG £'000% £'000
Hire of fazilities &8 O ) 8 21
Caterng income Lata] 0 0 68 34
Other income 424 509 0 233 1,038
500 509 1) 1,009 1,004

22|P=ge




5. Investment Income

Shori iem deposits

8. Expenditure

Expenditure on raising funds
Academy's educational operations:
- Direct costs
- Allocated support costs
Teaching School
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Restricted Restrcted

Met income / expenditure for the year includes:

Operafing leases:

- Plant & Machirery

- Ciher Leases
Depreciation
Loss on digposal of fixed assets
Fees payable to suditor for:

- Audit

- Cther serdces

33|FPage

Lnrestricted General  Fixed Asset
Funds Funds Funds Total 2017  Total 2016
E£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 E'OGQ
10 o 0] 10 &
10 4] 0 i0 i)
Staff Costs Non Pay Expenditure Total Total
Premises Other 2017 2016
E'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
a 448 47 1745 1686
18,160 2,460 2,657 23,277 17,303
4,426 722 5,190 10,338 7.336
a1 46 5 X2 404
22,756 3277 7,969 34. )2 25,208
2017 2016
£'000 £000
0 0
372 336
2,745 1,669
] O
16 12
3 8
H136 1,931
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7. Charitable Activities

Restricted Restricted
Lnrastrictac Ganers| Fixad Azsset

Funds Funds Fundz Total 2017 Total 2016
E'000 £'000 E000 £000 £000

Diract costs - educational operations 26 20,853 2,460 23,339 17,303
Support casts - educational operations 74 o o918 284 10,276 i)
100 20,771 2,744 23,615 24 635

Support costs - educational operations
Support staflf costs 4] . 0 4,428 3,020
Depraciation o o 284 284 101
Loss on dizsposal of fixed assets 0 1] 0 1] r]
Technalogy costs ] 287 0 207 235
Racruitment and support D 128 4] 125 BE
KMainternance of premises and equipment L] BHEG 0 986 487
Cleaning 0 &89 0 599 453
FRent & rates 0 248 a 248 278
Operating leases ] LE] 0 0 335
W ater O 236 0 236 192
Energy costs 0 810 r 510 388
L= =Ty tut=) ) 152 0 152 146
Securnty 0 100 0 100 48
Transport 0 83 4| a3 106
Catering 70 ¥ET 0 BZ7 508
Bank interest and chamges Q 1 0] 1 1
Office cwerheads 1 503 a 504 235
Cther support costs 3 Trv 4] TEO 5649
Govermance costs 0 104 4] 104 8o
74 9,918 284 10,276 T 330
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8. Staff Costs

Staff costs during the yvesr were:

Wages and salares

Social security costs

Operating costs of defined bensfit pension
schemes

Suppdy siaff costs
Staff restructuring costs

Staff restructuring costs comprise:
Redundancy payments
Severance payments

Other restructuring costs
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Total 20117 Teotal 2016
£'000 £'000

16,493 12,782
1,606 1,086
3,1 2,014
21,840 15,802
559 168

358 37
22,757 16,127
117 32

109 5

132 1]

358 LY

Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/nan-contractual severance payments totalling £103,500
{2016: £36,521). Individually, the payments were for £34,000, £18,350, £16,526, E10,177, £8,000, £8,122, £7,100,

and £4,926 (2018: £32,021 and £4,500).

The average number of persons employed by the Trust during the vear was as follows:

2017 2016
Charitahle activiies
Teacherns 249 194
Administration and support 3038 238
Management 29 26
586 " 458

The number of employess whose emplovee benefits (excluding employer pensian costs) exceeded £60,000 was.

z
@

£60,001 - £70,000
£70,001 - £50,000
£50,001 - £90,000
£490,001 - £100,000
E100,001 - £110,000
£110,001 - £120,000
£120,.001 - £130,000
£130,001 - £140,000
£140.001 - £150,000
£150,001 - £160,000
£180,001 - £170,000
£170,001 - £180,000

SO0 NS 2 Ng

=

LoD oOOoOMOoONMON=We

18 (2016: 8) of the abave employees participated in the Teachers’ Pension Scheme. During the year ended 212
August 2017, employer pension contributions for these staff amounted to £172,850 {2016: £90,706). The other
employes participated in the Local Government Pergion Scheme for which employer pension contributions

amounted to £16 576 (Z016: £17,013).

ILZjFzgs
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The key management personnel of the academy trust camprise the trustees and the executive management team
az listed on page 2. The tatal amount of emplayes benefits {including employer pension canttibniions} received by
key management personnel for their services to the academy trust was £488 843 {2016: E415,772).

9. Central Sarvices

The academy trust has provided the following central servicas to its academies during the year:

«  Governance

= leadership support

»  Fihancial management
= IT management

= Estates management
=  HR/Paymoll

+ Marketing support

»  Procurement managament

=  Group purchasing services

* Health and safety advisory services
*  Training and CRD

* School improvement services

The Trust policy in charging far central services is fo employ a flat percentage of 5% of total income excluding pupi
premium, high needs funding, and other specific drants or incomme relating to certain areas of individuai academy
business 9. sponsarship or fundrafsing of an individual academy. The actual amounts charged during the year
ended 31 August 2017 were as follows:

Total 2017 Total 2016

£'000 £°000

Ashten on Memey School 366 3Irs
Broadoak School 129 128
Forest (Gate Academy 64 [14]
Dean Trust Ardwick 125 a
Fartington Central Academy a5 ]
Lord Derby Acadeny 213 207
Park View Academy L+ ] v
Dean Trust Wigan 28 0

1,083 TT0

10. Net income from trading activities of subsidiary company

Ashton on Mergey Teaching School Limited, & company incorporated in England and Wales with an allotted, called
up and fully paid Ordinary share capital (£1 shares), is a wholly owned subsidiary of The Dean Trust, The company
has been consalidated into the Trust financial statements. The business activities of Ashton on Mersey Teaching
Scheol Limited and its relationship with the Dean Trust is described on pages 4 and 5 of the Trustees report.

2017 2016

£'000 £'0:00
Tumgner 205 418
Other cpetating charges {227 {412}
Inter group transactions Q 5]
Net profit {18} &
Tax on profits o {11
Transzfer to reserves {18} 5

b|Fage
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11. Related Party Transactions — Trustees’ remuneration & expenses

One trustee has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an emplayment with the academy
trust. The Chief BExecutive and Group Academy Prncipal and other staff trustees only receive remuneration in
respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of Chief Executive and Group Academy Principal and staff
under their contracis of employment, and not in respect of their services as trustees, Other trustees did not receive
any payments, other than expenses, from the academy frust in respect of their role as trustees. The value of
trustees’ remuneration and other benefits was as follows.

T Kapur {Chief Executive and Group Academy Principal and Trustes):
Remunerzation £170,001 - £175,000 {2016: £170,001 - £175,000})
Employer pension contributions £0 (2016; £0)

During the period ended 31 August 2017, travel and subsistence axpenses totalling £1,263 (2016: £1,532) were
reimbursed to 2 trustees (2016: 3 trustees), in accordance with the Trust's policy.

Other related party transactions involving the trustees are 32t out [ note 29,

12. Trustees’ and Officers’ Insurance

In accardance with normal commercial practice, tha Trust has purchased insurance to protect trustees and officers
from claims arsing from negligent acts, errars or omissions occurring whilst on academy business. The insurance
provides caver up to £4,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the year ended 31 August 2017 amounted to
£1.612 (2018: £4.770}. The cost of this insuranse is included in tha tetal insurance cost.

13. Tangible Fixed Assets

Freshold Leasehold Flant,

land and land and furniture and Compuier Motor

buildings buildings equipment  equipment wehicles Total 2047

£'000 £°000 £000 £000 £000 £'000

Cost
At 1 September 2016 40,234 29,685 2,484 831 ¥ T3
Asset reclassitcation 0 {¥&) 7 0 0 0
Transferred on conversion o 7250 0 0 0 7.250
Academy transfer 25,487 o 13 530 a1 26,761
Donated asset 0 23935 a 0 a 23,935
Additions FEN 86 5849 383 0 1,989
Disposals 0 0 {10} O 0 {10}
As at 31 August 2017 66,472 1,060 3,852 1,824 38 133,246
Depreciation
At 1 September 2076 2. 766 1,389 S50 206 5 5,007
Aszet reclassification 0 4] 1] ] o )]
Academy transfer 2272 1] 327 474 3 3,104
Charged [n year 826 1,165 445 302 1 2,744
Cizposals i} 0 (6] 0 Q {&)
As at 31 August 2017 5.864 2,538 1,427 282 38 10,349
Net book values
As at 31 August 2017 &0, 608 58,522 2,425 842 ] 122,397

The donated asset represents the value of land and buildings at Drean Trust Ardwick fullowing accupancy of the
new irea school site and building in September 2016. The terms of the develapment agresment betweaen

3F |Faegs
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Manchester City Council and The Dean Trust stafe that a lease frorm Manchester City Council to the Dean Trust will
be granted upon issue of the making good of defects certificate for the buiiding. The certificate had not been issued
at the balance sheet date. The land and buildings are however reflected in the balance sheets at their net book
value to refiect the Trust's effective leaseheld interest as the economic substance of this event rather thap its legal
form.

14, Stock
Group Academy Trust
2017 20146 2017 2016
£°000 £000 £000 £'000
Linifonm a 0 i) a
Stationerny 16 &0 16 S0
16 50 1G 50
15. Dehbtors
Group Academy Trust
2017 2016 2017 2016
E£'000 E'000 £'000 £'000
Trade debtors 145 KL 128 47
Amaunts owed by group undertakings 0 0 21 £09
Accrued income 736 1,564 736 1,564
VAT recoverable 507 257 507 277
Other debtors 14 o 14 5
Prepayrments 527 318 534 318
1,939 2,223 1,940 2,280

16. Creditors

&) Amounts falling due within one year

Group Academy Trust
20147 2016 2017 2016
E'000 £000 £'000 £000
Trade creditars 1,323 GED 1,326 539
Taxation and social security 441 a7 447 370
Other creditors 333 Zo8 3332 295
Other creditors - SALX Loan 18 18 18 18
Accruals and deferred income 1,964 1,415 1,357 1,404
4,135 2,695 4,125 2,874
Group Academy Trust
2017 2016 2017 2016
Deferred income £ £ £ £
Defered income at 1 September 603 Bo5 633 895
Resources deferred in the year 1,102 B03 1,101 633
Amourits released from previous years (603) L] (633) {855}
Deferred income at 31 August 1,102 603 1,101 633

At the balance sheet date, the Trust was holding funds received in advance for NGTL collaborative funding, ESFA
funding, Local Authority funding, and advance recgipts for school trps.

B|Fzge
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Group Academy Trust
2017 M6 2017 216
£7000) £'00D £'040 £00
SALEK Loan al 105 a0 103
a0 102 a0 104

The Trust received £144, 704 of SALL funding ralating to capital projects in the year ended 31* August 2015,
SALIX funding i= an interest free loan approved by the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) and is

repayable in equal instalments over § years. The repayments due on the 1% September 2017 and 1=t March 2013

are included in other creditors in note 16a.

[ne in less than one year

Due in more than one year but less than two

Due in twoe to five years
Due in more than five years

17. Funds

Restricted general funds
General annual grant (GAG)
Start up grant

Pupil Premium

Other DE/ESFA grants

Gither

Inhearited on transferconversion
Pension resense

Res=tricted fixed a=sszet funds
Transfr on comversian
Waluation

DEESFA capital grants

Local Authority capital funds
Capital expendiiure friom GAG /
Restricted Funds

Capital expandiure from
unrestricted funds

Cther Capital Funds

FPrivate sector capital sponsorship

Total resiricted funds
Unrastricted funds
Unresticted funds

Transfer on conversion
Total unrestricted funds

M|FPzge

18 12 1B 18

18 18 18 18

55 55 55 L

17 38 17 3G

108 " 127 108~ 127

Ealance at 1 Gains, Balance at
Sepiember Incoming Resources losses and 31 August
2016 res oUunces expanded transfers 2017
£°000 £000 £000 £'(HI0 £'000

a0 23,518 (24 459 155 13
0 1) o 0 0
0 2,075 (2,075) 0 0
0 3,101 {3.101) G 1)
o 0 0 0 1]
o g3a Q 0 830
(8.713) {1,543) {1,138} 3447 {7,945}
(7,912} 21,9848 (30,771) 3,602 {7. 093}
61 612 30,908 {1,525} 4] 03,925
3 P = ) {449) L] 23,486
1,681 1,289 (248) 0 2,722
1,210 11 (268) G a5h
1,023 0 (181) 367 1,229
162 L8] {Z26) 0 136
0 a1 i) 0 0 65
0 [u] 0 0 [+
GR, 683 56,308 {2. 745) 367 123,118
60,776 84,796 (33.516]) 2,065 116,025
2,622 598 (486) (522) 2,212
0 1,828 4] [H] 1,826
2,622 2,424 [4556} [(522) 4,038
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The figures above refer {o the consclidated balance sheet including the reserves of Ashton on Mersey Teaching
School Limited, which amount to £10.7035 (2016: £26,127 — following prior peried adjustroent).

The specific purposes for which the funds are applied is as follows:

Restricted gereral funds are those resources designated as restricted by the grant provider in meeting the abjects
of the Trust. Restricted fixed asset funds are those funds relating to the long term assets of the Trust used in
delivering the objectives of the Trust. Unrestricted funds are funds that the Trustess may use in the pursuance of
the Trust's objectives and are expendable at the discretion of the Trusiees.

Under funding agreements with the Secretary of State for Education, the Trust is not subyject to a limit on the
amaunt of General Annual Grant {GAG) carry forward at 31 August 2017,

18. Analysis of Net Assets beiween Funds

Fund balances at 31 August 2017 are represented by:

. . Restricted

Un r:.lsntg ;ted g;e:r:-:?;t:is fixed asset  Total Funds
funds
£'000 £000 £'000 E'000

Tangible fixed assets o o 122,397 122,397
Cumment assets 4,028 4,968 820 836
Curtent liabilities 0 4117 {18} (4,135)
Noncumrent liabilities 0 O (90} {80
Fension scheme liability 4] {7.545) o {7.845)
4,058 (7,093} 123,118 120,063

The figures above refer to the consolidated balance sheet Including the reserves of Ashton on Mersey Teaching
School Limited.

19. Capital Commitments

2017 2016
£'000 £000
Contracted but not provided in the financial statements 80 oo

80 20

Capital commitrants contracted for but not provided for in the financial statements relate o

COTY system at Ashton on Mersey - £18,773

CCTV system at Broadoak Schoal - £4,205

CCTV system at Forest Gate Academy - £8,650

CCTV systemn af Partington Central Academy - £14,630
Play area at Blacklow Brow Primary - £33 262

Afurther sum of nil (2016: £408,000) was authorised but not contracted at 31 Allgust 2017,

40| P age
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20. Commitments Under Opearating Leases
Operating Leases

At 31 August 2017 the total of the Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable aperating leases
was:

2017 2016

£'000 £'0MH)
Armourts due within one year 342 357
Armcounts dus between one and five years 256 3|
Amounts due afer five vears [H o
638 718

PFl Commitments

Lord Derby Academy is a PFI school operating from a site that opened in September 2009 under a 25 year PFi
contract. Upen the conversion of Lord Derby Academy on 1% February 2014, the Trust contracted with Knowsley
MBL to discharge the financial ohligations of unitary charges for the remainder of the coniract The unitary charges
amaount to £1,297,014 subject to annual indexation using RPIL Based an current valuesg, at 31 August 2017 the
Trust had unitary charge commitments as fellows for the remaining 17 years of the PF| contract:

2017 2016
PFI Commitments £ £
Amounts due within one year 1,297 1,026
Amounts due within cna and five vears 5,188 4. 106
Amounts due after five years 15,064 13,343
22 045 18,475

21. Reconciliation of Net Income/ (Expenditure) to Net Cash Inflow from Cperating
Activilies

2017 206
£000 £'000
Met income.-'{expen-:':llture}frfnl' the reporting perod (as per the 53.218 2 986
statement of financizal actities)
Adiusted for
Depreciation (note 13) 2,745 1,564
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 4 4}
Donations - inherted fixed aszsets (57,508) {4,325}
Capital grants from DIE/ESFA and ofher capital income {1,965) {1,3328)
interest receivable (note §) {10} (&)
Defined Lenefit pensicn scheme obligation inherted 1,543 f43
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable g21 180
{note 28)
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost (note 28) 215 182
(ncrease) [ decrsase in stocks 34 44
{increase) / decrease in debiors 282 (1,048)
Increase ! {decrease} in creditors 1,440 {2213
Net cash inflow from operating activities 219 {1,345}




22, Cash Flows from Financing Activities
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2017 2016

£000 £7000
Repayments of bomowing {18} {18}
Cash inflows from new barrowing a 0
Cash transferred upon academy comersion 2,665 17
Net cash provided by / {used in) financing activities 2 6547 {1}
23. Cash Flows from Investing Activities

2017 2016

£000 £'000
Dividends, interest and rents from imvestments 10 6
Purchaze of tangible fixed assets {1,989} (1,054)
Capital grants from DIE/ESFA, 1,289 1,339
Capital grants from sporsors and others 876 0
Froceeds from =aje of fangible fixed assets 1 1]
Net cash provided by / [used in) investing activities {14) 291
24. Analysis of Cash and Cash Equivaients

At sgﬂelt:mhar Cash flows Ataltﬁr.;gust 2016
£'Dag £'000 E'000 £000
Cash in hand and at bank 4,329 3,552 7.881 4,329
Motice deposits i) 0 8]
4,329 3,552 7. 351 4,329

25. Guarantees, letters of comfort and indemnities

Mo transactions arose

26. Contingent Liabiiities

During the life of the funding agreesment, in the event of the sale ot disposal by ather means of any asset for which
a government capital grant was received, the academy is required either to re-invast the proceeds or to repay to
the Secratary of State for Education the zame propottion of the proceeds of the sale or disposal as enuates with

the propertion of the ariginal cost met by the Secretary of State.

L'pon termination of the funding agreement, whether as a result of the Secretary of State or the Academy serving
notice, the academy shall repay to the Secretary of State sums determined by reference to:

a) the value at that time of the academy’s site and premises and other asseis held for the purpase of the

academy and

b} the extent to which expenditure incurred in providing those assets was met By payments by the Secretary

of State under the funding agreement.
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27. Members’ Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute o the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while hefshe is a member, or within ane year after he/she ceases to be a8 member, such amount

as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and lisbilities contracted before hefshe ceasesto be a
member.

28. Pension and Similar Obligations

The employees of the Academy Trust belong to two pringipal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGP3) for
non-teaching staff. Mon-teaching staff are members of the Greater Manchester Pension Fund (GMPF)
administered by Tameside Matropelitan Borgugh Council for Ashton on Mersey School, Broadoak School, Forest
Gate Academy, Partington Central Academy, Dean Trust Ardwick, and Dean Trust Wigan, and the Merseyside
Fension Fund {MPF) sdmiristered by Wimral Borough Council for Lord Derby Academy and Park View Academy.
Both pension schemes are multi-emplover defined-benefit schemes.

The pension cost is agzessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuares. The latest actuarial
valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the most recent L3PS valuations far both

the GMPF and MPF were camied out in 2016 for implementation of new emplayer contribution rates from 12 April
2017,

There were no outstanding or prepaid cantributions at the beginning of the period. A sum of £0 (2016: £21,733)

was due to the MPF at 313 August 2017 and this is included in with acerued expenditure within these financial
statements.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pengion Scheme {TP5) is a statutory, confributary, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers’ Pensions Regulations (2010) and from 1 April 2014, by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulatians
2014, Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies and, from 1 January 2007, automatic far
teachers in part-time employment follawing appaintment or a change of contract, although they are able to apt out.

The TRS3 is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on & 'pay a3 you 9o’ basis — these confributions along

with thoge made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by
public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Not less than svery faur years the Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles. conducts a formal
actuarial review of the TPS in accordance with the Public Sarvice Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap)
Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury, The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions.
Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and
many other factors. The latest sctuarial valuation of the TPS was camied out as at 31 March 2012 and in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions {Valuations and Employer Cast Cap) Directions 2014, The valuation
report was published by the Department for Education on 8 June 2014, The key elements of the valuation and
subsequent consultation are:

« employer contribution rates set at 16.48% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% scheme
administration charge (previously 14.1%6)

+ total scherne liabilities (pensions cumently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
setvice to the effective date of £191,500 million, and national assets {estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date} of £176,600 million giving & notiansal
past service deficit of £14,800 million

2|Fase
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= an employer cast cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations

+ the assumed real rate of retum iz 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of eamings. The rats of
real eamings growth is assumed fo be 2.75%. The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%

The TPS valuation for 2012 determined an employer rate of 16.48% from September 2015 including a G08%
scheme administration charge. During the previous the employer contribution rate was 14.1%. The next valuatian

of the TP will be as at March 2018, whersupon the employer contribution rate is expected to be reassessed and
will be payable from 1 Apdl 2018,

The pension cost paid to TPS in the year ended 319 August 2017 amounted to £2 436 055 {2016 £2,020,400}.
These amounts include emplover and emplayse cantributions for the year ended 315 August 2017 of £1 536 430
and £899,575 respectively (2016: £1,287 998 and £742 402}

A copy of the valuation report and supparting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website,

Under the definitions set out in Financial Reporting Standard (FRS 102), the TPS is a mult-emplayer pension
schemse. The trust hes accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribUution scheme.
The trust has sef out above the information available on the seheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit schema, with the assets hald in separate trustse-administerad funds.
Contributions to the scheme are determined by a qualified actuary and based upen triennial valuations using the
projected unit method. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2017 wags £1,135,110 {2016:
£805,828), of which emplayer's contributions totalled £828 880 (2015: £652, 196} and employees’ contributions
tatalled £306,230 (2016: £253,630). An additional lump sum of £116,239 (2016: £91,325) was paid by the
employer to MPF in respect of those employees that are members of the scheme administerad by MFF. The
agreed employes cuntribution rates are banded from 5.5% to 12.5%.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of
academy closure, cutstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabiliies would be met by the Deparment for
Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013,

Principal Actuarial Assumptions
At 31 August 2017 At 31 August 2016

Rate of increass in salaries 3.2% 3.4%
Rate of increass for pensions in paymentinflation 24% 21%
Discount rate for scheme labilitles 2.5% 2.1%
Inflation assumption {CP1} 2.4% 2.1%
Commutation of pensions to lump sums (pre-April 2008 85.0% 55.0%
service)

Commutation of pensions o lump sums {post-April 50.0% S0.0%
2008 service)

The scheme iiabfities are sensitive to changes in the principal actuarial assumptions. The table below shows the
increase in scheme liabilities that would be experienced.

At 3i At
August 2017 August 2016
£000 £000¢
(.5% decrease i real discount rate 3,052 2471
0.5% Increase in the salary increase =ity 428
rate
0.5% increase in the pension increaze 2465 1,721
rate

dd|Fzge
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The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The

assumed life expectations on refirement age 65 are:

At 31 August 2017 At 31 August 2016

Current pensioners:

Males 215 years 214 years
Females 241 vears 24 0 years
Ftiure pensioners:

Males 23.7 years 240 yvears
Females 26.2 years 285 years

The Trust's share of the assets and liabiliies in the scheme were:;

Fairvalue at  Fair value at
31 August 31 August

2017 2016

E0GD EDQD
Equities 11,318 7.228
Bonds 2525 1,744
Froperty 970 636
Cash D06 671
Total market value of assets 15,800 10,279
Present value of scheme lFabilities - Funded (23,754 (18,952
Deficit in the scheme {7.945] {8,713)

The actual return on schems assets was £1,648 000 (2018: £400,000).

Amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities

2017 2016

£040 £000
Cumrent service cost {het of amployee contributions) o021 1658
Met interest cost 2135 182
Expected return on pension schame assets 0 0
Past service cost 0 ]
Benefit changes, gainf{loss) on curlailment and 33 ¥
gairf{loss) on setlement
Total aperating charge 1,168 381
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29. Related Parly Transactions

The charity is controlled by the Trustees who are directors of the eompany.

Cwing to the nature of the academy trust's operations and the compasition of the Board of Trustees being drawn
from local public and private sector organisatians, transactions may take place with organisations in which a trustes
has an interest. All transacfions invelving such arganisations are conducted at arm’s length and in accordarce with
the academy trust's financial regulations and normal procurement proceduras.

The following related pariy transactions took place in the period of account:

tManchester United Foundation — a charity in which T Kapur, a trustee, Chief Executive Officer is a board
member, and J Shisls, a trustee, is the Chief Executive. The Manchester United Foundation operates a
football hub fram the Broadaak Schaol site, This [nks with the football developrment plan for Parfington and
the peighbouring cormmunities run by Broadoak School. The cost of the football hub amounted to £25 000
{2016 £19,000) and predominanty related to the employment of a football development officer by the
Manchaster United Foundation. There were no autstanding amounts at 31 August 2017 {2016 £nil).

The Football Foundation — a charity in which T Kapur, a trustee, Chief Executive Officer is chaimnan of the
FA and Premier League facilittes funding panel. Dean Trust Ardwick submitted a bid for funding for the
construction of a sports pavilion with an estimated total cost of £750,000. T Kapur withdrew from all parts of
the grant application process and subsequent assessment by The Football Foundation. The Football
Foundation agreed a grant of £20,000 in the financial year ended 312 August 2016 towards the
development of the bid and a further EE56,088 in the financial year ended 31% August 2017 towards the
develapment of the pavilion. An income of £656,088 is included In the year ended 31 August 2017 {20146
£17.310}, of which a total of £149.770 was outstanding at 31% August 2017 {2016 £nil).

Ashion on Mersey Teaching Schoal Limited 1= a whally owned subsidiarny of The Dean Trust. Under the
terms of a shared services agreement, the Dean Trust provides staff to enable Ashton on Mersey Teaching
School Limited fo conduct its busingss for which agreed recharges are made. A sum of £80,712 was
recharged in the year anded 31 August 2017 (2016: £168,228). Ashion on Mersey Teaching School
Limited undertakes business from a base at the Ashiton on Mersey School premises. A recharge for
occupancy and other ancillary support costs such as reprographics i3 made and amounted to £48,772 in
the year ended 31 August 2017 (2016: £62 085), A total of £20,723 was owtstanding at 29 August 2017
{2018: £68 448} Azhton on Mersey Teaching Schaol Limited provides continuing professional developrment
o staff within The Dean Trust Schools and a charge is made for these development activities. 1 the year
ended 31 August 2017 this totalled £18,583 (2016: £4,173).
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30. Fund balances

Fund balances at 31 August 2017 were allocated as follows:

2017 2016

£000 £'000
Ashten on Mersay School 1,229 1,473
Ashton on Mersey Teaching School Limited 11 29
Broadoak School (247 161
Farest Gate Acadamy 266 274
Partington Central Academy 436 0
Dean Trust Ardwick 225 29
Lord Derby Academy 776 1,404
Park View Academy (M (27)
Dean Trust Wigan 2,198 1]
Total before fixed asset and pension reserva 4,890 3,423
Festricted fixed aszet fund 123,118 65,688
Pension reserse (7.945) {8,713}
Total 120,063 63,398

Partington Central Academy and Dean Trust Wigan jeined the Trust during this financial year. Park View Academy
joined the Trust during the previous financial year with an expenditure base which was not covered by income. The
Trust took action to return the academy budget to a surplus over time with an immediate improvement. This
included a rebust plan to grow pupil numbers at the academy towards full capacity. it has also included a review of
staffing structures and the cost base generally ta align costs with available funds and other income streams. These
actions are designed to retum the academy to cumulaiive surplus over a number of years. In the meantime, the
Trust will be suppeorting the academy deficit. The finangial position st Broadoak School has been similarly
addressad. Growth in pupil numbers has been achieved. Alongside a carafully considered cost reduction plan the
acaddeny is expected fo rebuild balances and return to an overall positive reserves position over tme.

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incumed by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching and
educational Cither Cther costs
suppartstaff  support Educational  (excluding
costs staffooets  supplies  depreciation) Depreciation  Total 2017 Total 2016
£'000 £'000 £'oon £'000 £'000 £'N0d E'00D
The Dean Trust 337 TEQ a0 544 1 1372 1.182
Azhion on Mersey Schoal 5,532 oaa 1,220 1,233 529 9.30Z 80453
Ernadaeak Schonl 2143 250 2186 B33 435 JETT 3,527
Forest Gata Azademy a14 Bt 121 325 @5 1,528 1427
[rean Trust Ardwick 1615 262 176 586 Go5 32337 1,083
Fartington Cenfral Acaderny 1550 127 132 33T 133 2085 a
Lord Derby Academy 3,592 530 AT73 1439 508 6,549 6 266
Park View Academy 1,087 158 T3 252 &3 1528 1,081
Drean Trist Wigan 1,308 214 148 4712 234 2,316 {
Total funds 18,160 3370 2. B85 & 765 2.744 32,694 24,489
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31. Conversion to an Academy Trust

On 1 September 2016 Partington Central Academy (formerly Parington Primary School) converied ta academy
status under the Acadermnies Act 2010 and all of the operations and assets and liabilties were transferred to The
Dean Trust from Trafford MBC for £nil consideration. Partington Primary Schoal land and Buildings transfered
under a fong lease of 125 vears with a peppeteorn rent of £nil.

On 1 April 2017 Dean Trust Wigan {formerly Abraham Guest Academy) was rebrokered and alf of the operations
and assets and liabilities were transferred to The Degan Trust from Abraham Guest Academy Trust for £nil
consideration. Abraham Guest Academy land and buildings transferred as a freehald interest.

The Partingten Central Academy and Dean Trust Wigan transfers have been accounted for using the acquisition
method. The assats and liabilities transferrad were valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance shest
under the appropriate headings with a corresponding net amount recagnised as net incoming rescurces in the
Statement of Financial Activifies &5 voluntary income.

Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset

Funds Funds Funds Total 2017

E'R0 £'000 E£'DIN) £000
Fartingten Central Academy
Leazehold lend & buildings 0 il ¥, 250 T.250
Oher fixed assets a a 1] 1]
Surpus on LA funds 374 0 iy ard
LEPE pension daficit 8] {361) a (361}
Dean Trust Wigan
Freehold land & buildings #] a 23,16 23,216
Cther fixed assets G Q 443 342
Surplus on LA funds 1,452 &30 Q 227
LGPS pension deficit 1] (1,182 Q (1.182}
Total funds 1,82€ (704) 30,908 32,030

32. Agency Arrangements

The Trust distribittes 16-19 bursary funds and school centred initial tesicher training (SCITT) bursaries to students
as an agent far the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA). In the financial year ending 31 August 2017 the
Trust received £10,557 (2016: £12,456} of 168-19 bursaries and £186,000 {2016: £250,000 of SCITT bursaries, It
disbursed £12,557 (2016: £12,456) {cash and in kind) and £142,600 {2016: £234,000) from the respective funds,
An amount of £43,400 {2016: £16,000) is included in other creditors refating to undistributed SCITT funds that is
repayable to the EFA.

33. Events after the balance shest date

Elacklow Brow Primary School a maintained primary scheol in Knowsley canverted to an academy and joined The
Bean Trust with effect from the 1 September 2017, The school was rebranded and named Blacklow Brow Schoal
upon conversion. Pre-conversion grants and related expenditure are accountsd for within these financial
statements.
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